
RON DESANTIS 
Governor 

January 27. 2025 

Gregory C. Harrell 
Clerk of Court 
Marion County 
P.O. Box I 030 
Ocala. FL 344 78-1030 

Dear Gregory Harrell: 

FLO~JI?~ __ p _EPARTMENT of S.:rAIE 

CORD BYRD 
Secretary of State 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 125.66. Florida Statutes. this will acknowledge receipt of your 
electronic copy of Marion County Ordinance No. 2025-02. which was filed in this office on January 22. 
2025. 

Sincerely. 

Alexandra Leijon 
Administrative Code and Register Director 

AL/dp 

R. A. Gray Building • 500 South Bronough Street • Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250 
Telephone: (850) 245-62 70 



Susan Mills McAllister 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Good afternoon, 

County Ordinances <County0rdinances@dos.myflorida.com > 
Monday, January 27, 2025 02:16 PM 
Susan Mills McAllister; County Ordinances 
Debra Windberg; Debra Lewter 
RE: MRN20250121_ORDINANCE_2025_02 
Marion20250122_Ordinance2025_02_Ack.pdf 

Attached is the acknowledgement letter for Marion County Ordinance 2025-02. 

Thank you, 

David Parrish 
Government Operations Consultant II 
Office of the General Councel 
Department of State 
Room 701 - The Capital- Tallahassee, FL 
P: (850) 245-6270 

From: Susan Mills McAllister <SusanM@marioncountyclerk.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025, 3:26 PM 
To: County Ordinances <CountyOrdinances@dos.myflorida .com> 
Cc: Debra Windberg <DebraW@marioncountyclerk.org>; Debra Lewter <DebraL@marioncountyclerk.org> 
Subject: MRN2025012l_ORDINANCE_2025_02 

EMAIL RECEIVED FROM EXTERNAL SOURCE 

"' The attachments/links in this message have been scanned by Proofpoint. : •. <t' 

Good afternoon Ms. Grosenbaugh, 

Pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, attached for filing in your office is an electronic pdf copy of 
Marion County Ordinance 25-02 . The Ordinance was adopted by the Marion County Board of County 
Commissioners on Tuesday, January 21 , 2025. 

Please advise our office of the date on which this Ordinance was filed. 

Thank you in advance for your cooperation in this matter. 

Sincerely, 



Susan Mills McAllister 
Clerk, Commission Records 
352-671-57271 SusanM@marioncountyclerk.org 
Office of Gregory C. Harrell 
Marion County Clerk of Court and Comptroller 
PO Box 1030, Ocala FL 34478-1030 
352-671-5604 I www.marioncountyclerk.org 
"Here to serve and protect the public trust" 
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Susan Mills McAllister 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Susan Mills McAllister 
Wednesday, January 22, 2025 03:26 PM 
countyordinances@dos.myflorida.com 
Debra Windberg; Debra Lewter 
MRN20250121_ORDINANCE_2025_02 
MRN20250121_ORDINANCE_2025_02.pdf 

Good afternoon Ms. Grosenbaugh, 

Pursuant to provisions of Florida Statutes, attached for filing in your office is an electronic pdf copy of 
Marion County Ordinance 25-02. The Ordinance was adopted by the Marion County Board of County 
Commissioners on Tuesday, January 21, 2025. 

Please advise our office of the date on which this Ordinance was filed. 

Thank you in advance for your cooperation in this matter. 

Sincerely, 



Susan Mills McAllister 

From: 
Sent: 

Municode Ords Admin <MunicodeOrds@civicplus.com> 
Tuesday, January 28, 2025 03:45 PM 

To: Susan Mills McAllister 
Subject: RE: Marion County, FL Code of Ordinances - 1985(10237) OrdBank, Marion County, FL 

Land Development Code - 2013(13949) OrdBank 

We have received your file. 

Thank you and have a nice day, 

Ords Administrator • CivicPlus 
MunicodeOrds@civicplus.com 
1-800-262-2633 
P.O. Box 2235 
Tallahassee, FL 32316 

When available, please send all documents in WORD format to MunicodeOrds@civicplus.com. However, if 
WORD format is not available, we welcome any document format including PDF. 

ems (sfie/fier/fiers) 
civicplus.com 

C;t CIVICPLUS Powering and Empowering Local Governments 

From: Susan Mills McAllister <SusanM@marioncountyclerk.org> 
Sent: Monday, January 27, 2025 2:56 PM 
To: Municode Ords Adm in <MunicodeOrds@civicplus.com>; Municode Ords Adm in <MunicodeOrds@civicplus.com> 
Cc: Debra Windberg <DebraW@marioncountyclerk.org>; Debra Lewter <DebraL@marioncountyclerk.org> 
Subject: Marion County Ordinance 25-02 

Attached is Ordinance 25-02 which was adopted by the Marion County Board of County 
Commissioners on Tuesday, January 21, 2025. 

Please advise of any problems you may have opening the attached Word documents. 

Susan Mills McAllister 
Clerk, Commission Records 
352-671-5727 I SusanM@marioncountyclerk.org 
Office of Gregory C. Harrell 



Marion County Clerk of Court and Comptroller 
PO Box 1030, Oca la FL34478-1030 
352-671-56041 www.marioncountyclerk.org 
"Here to serve and protect the public trust" 
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ORDINANCE NO. 25- 02 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF MARION COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 3 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, SECTION 3.5, SALE ON COUNTY 
PROPERTY; AMENDING CHAPTER 14 PARKS AND 
RECREATION, ARTICLE I, SECTION 14-6, ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES IN COUNTY PARKS; PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS; 
PROVIDING FOR RESOLUTION OF CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Florida Statute Section 125.01 ( 1 )(f) authorizes Marion County Board of 
County Commissioners (hereafter, "the Board") to provide parks, preserves, playgrounds, 
recreation areas, and other recreation and cultural facilities and programs; and 

WHEREAS, Florida Statute 125.0l(l)(o) empowers the Board to "[e]stablish and enforce 
regulations for the sale of alcoholic beverages in the unincorporated areas of the County pursuant 
to general law"; and 

WHEREAS, under state laws regulating the sale of beer, wine, or other alcoholic or 
intoxicating beverages, the Board is authorized to establish the location and hours of operation 
for alcohol sales in the unincorporated areas of the County; and 

WHEREAS, the Board previously adopted Marion County Ordinance 77-7, prohibiting 
the sale of alcoholic beverages on Marion County owned property or property leased by Marion 
County; and 

WHEREAS, the Board then adopted Marion County Ordinance 85-11, providing for an 
exception to the prohibition against the sale of alcoholic beverages on any Marion County owned 
property or any property leased by Marion County by allowing persons or groups to apply for an 
exception to the rule for events held at the Southeastern Livestock facility at a board meeting 
preceding the proposed event; and 

WHEREAS, the Board also adopted Marion County Ordinance 94-20 which prohibited 
possession of any alcoholic beverage in any county park; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to amend Chapter 14-6 Marion County Code of Ordinances, 
to establish a policy related to the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages on certain Marion 
County owned property, or property leased by Marion County; and 

WHEREAS, the Board deems that this amendment is in the best interest of the general 
public, and for the purposes of protecting the health, safety and welfare of the general public; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Maron County, Florida as follows: 



SECTION 1. RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein, but need not be set forth in the Marion County Code. 

SECTION 2. Chapter 3 of the Marion County Code, Alcoholic Beverages, Section 3.5 Sale 
on County Property, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 3-5. - Sale or consumption on county property. 

The sale or consumption of alcoholic beverages, as defined herein, shall be prohibited on 
any county-owned property or any property leased by the county, except as may be 
permitted by resolution of the Marion County Board of County Commissioners. 

SECTION 3. Chapter 14 of the Marion County Code, Parks and Recreation, Article 
I, Section 14-6, Alcoholic Beverages is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 14-6. - Alcoholic beverages. 

No person shall possess any alcoholic beverage, as defined in Section 3-1 of this Code, 
in any county park, except as may be permitted by resolution of the Marion County Board of 
County Commissioners. 

SECTION 4. CONFLICTS. In the event that the provisions of this ordinance are in 
conflict with any other ordinance, then the provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail. 

SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the Board of 
County Commissioners of Marion County that if any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or 
provision of this ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality 
shall not be construed as to render invalid or unconstitutional the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance. 

SECTION 6. REPEAL OF ORDINANCES. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, in 
conflict with this ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

SECTION 7. INCLUSION IN COUNTY CODE. It is the intent of the Board of County 
Commissioners of Marion County, Florida, and it is hereby provided that the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be incorporated into the Marion County Code of Ordinances and that the sections 
of this Ordinance may be re-numbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intent. 

SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DA TE. A certified copy of this Ordinance shall be filed with 
the Secretary of State by the Clerk within ten ( 10) days after enactment by the Board of County 
Commissioners, and shall take effect upon such filing as provided in Section 125.66(2)(b), Florida 
Statutes. 
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DULY ADOPTED thisli day of _ J~A~O~D~B~-r-~4---_, 2025. 
\ 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
MARI N COUNTY, FLORIDA 

y 

RECEIVED NOTICE FROM SECRETARY OF STATE ON 
JANUARY 27, 2025 ADVISING ORDINANCE WAS FILED 
ON JANUARY 22, 2025. 
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